
Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
Regular Meeting of The Board Of Trustees 

  
THE MEETING WILL BEGIN AT 1:00 PM VIA ZOOM, INSTRUCTIONS TO JOIN POSTED 

AT WWW.WINNETKALIBRARY.ORG 
 

The Board meeting will be conducted as a virtual meeting consistent with the Governor’s Executive 
Orders and recent amendments to the Open Meetings Act. 

*Attachments 
 

 
AGENDA 

Tuesday, August 18, 2020 
1:00-2:00 p.m. Open Session (estimate) 

2:00-7:00 p.m. Closed Session (estimate) 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

III. Public Comments 
 

IV. Vote to Approve Minutes of the July 20, 2020 Regular Meeting* 
 

V. Financial Report 
• Review Preliminary July 2020 Financial Statements* 

 
VI. Library Reports 

• Director’s Report (Interim Director Quish)* 
• Board President’s Comments (President Ruiz-Funes) 

 
VII. Liaisons to Other Organizations – Reports 

• Winnetka Village (Trustee Johnson) 
• Northfield Village (Trustee Shoup) 

 
VIII. Unfinished Business 

• Update on library director search (Trustee Gosselin)  
• Update on library reopening plans* 
• Patio project update  

 
IX. New Business 

• Discussion and Vote on District closure dates for Fiscal Year 2020-2021*  
• Discussion and Vote on Annual Ordinance Authorizing Non-Resident Cards*  
• Discussion and Vote on District Printer/Copier Lease Agreement* 
• Discussion and Vote on Auditor Engagement* 
• Discussion and Vote on Ordinance Adopting Building and Maintenance Tax (.02% 

special tax) for Fiscal Year 2020-2021*  
• Review Draft of Budget and Appropriation Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2020- 2021*  

X. Communications 
• The next meeting will be held on Monday, September 21 at 7pm and will begins with 

a special hearing for the approval of the Budget and Appropriation Ordinance for 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 

 
XI. Public Comments 

1

http://www.winnetkalibrary.org/


Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
Regular Meeting of The Board Of Trustees 

  
THE MEETING WILL BEGIN AT 1:00 PM VIA ZOOM, INSTRUCTIONS TO JOIN POSTED 

AT WWW.WINNETKALIBRARY.ORG 
 

The Board meeting will be conducted as a virtual meeting consistent with the Governor’s Executive 
Orders and recent amendments to the Open Meetings Act. 

*Attachments 
 

 
 

XII. Adjourn to Closed Session 
• Closed Session 
5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1): To consider the appointment, employment, compensation, 
discipline, performance, or dismissal of a specific employee of the library district. 

 
XIII. Return to Open Session 

 
XIV. Adjournment 

 

2

http://www.winnetkalibrary.org/


 
 

 WINNETKA-NORTHFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

July 20, 2020 
 

I. Call to Order 
The meeting was held virtually via Zoom due to the COVID-19 pandemic. President 
Ruiz-Funes called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. A quorum was present. 

 
II. Roll Call 

Present: President Jean-Paul Ruiz-Funes, and Trustees Suzie Shoup, Travis Gosselin, 
Raheela Anwar, Brian Johnson, Katherine Casale MacNally and Deborah Vandergrift; 
and Interim Library Director Sarah Quish. 
Absent:  

 
Present were library employees; Nicola White (Administrative Assistant) and Mark 
Swenson (Head of Information Technology). Present was Winnetka resident Jeffrey Liss. 
Present were Northfield residents Sue Kelly and Nancy Detlefsen. Present was 
Northbrook resident Susan Kelly.  

 
III. Public Comments 

Northfield resident Sue Kelly commented on reopening the Studio.  
 
Northfield resident Nancy Detlefsen commented on reopening the Northfield Branch 
Library. 

 
IV. Vote to Approve Minutes of the June 15, 2020 Regular Meeting 

A MOTION was made by Trustee Casale MacNally to approve the Minutes of the June 
15, 2020 Regular Meeting and seconded by Trustee Anwar. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
AYES: Trustees Casale MacNally, Shoup, Johnson, Gosselin, Anwar, Vandergrift and 
Ruiz-Funes 
 NAYS: 0 
 ABSENT:  
MOTION CARRIED 

 
V. Financial Report 

Interim Director Quish and Trustee Vandergrift presented the June 2020 Financial 
Statements. 
 
A MOTION was made by Trustee Vandergrift to approve the June 2020 Financial 
Statements and seconded by Trustee Shoup.  
 
The MOTION passed on a voice vote. 
 

VI. Library Report 

3



 
 

LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S REPORT: 
Interim Director Quish reported: 

• Head of Youth Services Amanda Garrity submitted an impact story from a patron 
who was very excited about and thankful for the Summer Reading Choose Your 
Own Adventure Read Aloud Book Club Program. 

• Digital circulation took a slight dip from May to June; the District attributes this 
to curbside service allowing for more physical checkouts.  

• The District is still issuing temporary library cards; there were 38 new cards 
issued in June; totaling 188 since the closure. 

• Virtual Branch circulation is up 61%. 
• Summer Reading is coming to an end; the District currently has 375 registrants, 

and 18 patrons have finished. 
• The District launched Found4You, a new book recommendation service.  
• Programming is down 11% from last year, however this is to be expected during 

the pandemic.  
o The Super Smash Bros. program had 45 attendees 
o The Monet and the Story of Impressionism program had 42 attendees 

• The new District app is ready and out on Google and Apple stores. 
 

BOARD PRESIDENT’S REPORT: 
President Ruiz-Funes reported: 

• Interim Director Emily Compton-Dzak is on (non-COVID-19 related) medical 
leave of absence for eight weeks; Head of Communications Sarah Quish has 
stepped in as Interim Director.   

• The trustees’ thoughts are with those directly affected by COVID-19 and they 
wish to thank the first responders and essential workers for their efforts.   

• President of the Village of Northfield Joan Frasier expressed concern with the 
Northfield Branch Library remaining closed during the pandemic, and the lack of 
capital projects to update the Northfield Branch Library. 

o President Ruiz-Funes and Interim Director Quish will be meeting with 
Joan Frasier to discuss these concerns. 

o The reopening of the Northfield Branch Library is a top priority for the 
District; The District will continue to follow the key guiding principles of 
uncompromising patron and staff safety and remaining in full compliance 
of state guidelines.  

o A great amount of thought has been given to capital projects at the 
Northfield Branch Library; plans are on hold and will remain on hold until 
the new director is in place.   

• No patron in the District should have difficulty obtaining books when either of the 
buildings are closed; the District should continue to focus on making sure all 
patrons have access to digital materials. 
 

VII. Liaisons to Other Organizations-Reports 
• Winnetka Village- Trustee Johnson reported that the court case against 

OneWinnetka for property maintenance continues. He also reported that District 
36 is reopening, but in what form will depend on where the state of Illinois is at 

4



 
 

the time, and that the Village Cleanup and Sidewalk Sale are getting back on 
track.     

• Northfield Village- Trustee Shoup reported that there will be a virtual Village meeting 
on July 21, 2020 to discuss the 2040 plan, remote learning, and dealing with COVID-
19.  
 

VIII. Unfinished Business 
• Update on library director search 

Trustee Gosselin gave an update on the library director search. He reported that 
the finalist interviews will be conducted on August 17, 2020 and August 18, 2020.  

 
• Update on library reopening plans 

Interim Director Quish reported that the District launched a community survey to 
determine what services patrons were interested in and comfortable with.  

o Patrons had expressed concern with safety and cleaning; the Facilities 
team has increased cleaning, added plexiglass partitions, removed seating, 
placed hand sanitizer throughout the building and the District has limited 
the number of people allowed in the building at one time.  

o There were also patrons interested in limited curbside pickup service at the 
Northfield Branch Library, which the District hopes to offer soon. Once 
the Winnetka building is reopened smoothly, the District will focus on 
accessing the Northfield collection, and looks forward to reopening the 
Northfield Branch Library as we navigate the steps of reopening amid 
current guidelines.  

 
• Patio project update 

Interim Director Quish reported that the management team approved the pavers 
and were all on board with Lakota’s recommendation. She also reported that she 
was not able to receive an estimated completion date but will keep the Board 
posted. 
 

IX. New Business 
• Update and discussion of One Book Two Villages Program 

Interim Director Quish reported that the District is proposing the program be 
virtual and free to all patrons this year. The Board discussed the logistics of 
having a virtual One Book Two Villages program.   
 

• Discussion and assignment of two trustees to conduct annual Board Secretary’s 
Review of Records for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 
President Ruiz-Funes and Trustee Casale MacNally agreed to conduct the annual 
Board Secretary’s Review of Records for Fiscal Year 2019-2020.   

 
X. Communications 

• No communications.  
 

XI. Public Comments 
Northbrook resident Susan Kelly commented on the Board’s email account. 
 

5



 
 

Winnetka resident Jeffrey Liss commented on the director search.  
 
Northfield resident Sue Kelly commented on the director search.  
 

XII. Adjournment 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a MOTION to adjourn was 
made by Trustee Casale MacNally and seconded by Trustee Shoup.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
AYES: Trustees Casale MacNally, Shoup, Johnson, Gosselin, Anwar, Vandergrift and 
Ruiz-Funes 
 NAYS: 0 
 ABSENT:  
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 President Ruiz-Funes adjourned the meeting at 8:33 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Nicola White 
Recording Secretary 

 
 
 

___________________________ Jean-Paul Ruiz-Funes, President 
 

 
___________________________ Suzanne Shoup, Secretary 

6



Revenues
Library Fund 4,122,360.00 343,530.00 746,629.22 %18.11 403,099.22
IMRF Fund 100,000.00 8,333.33 17,009.01 %17.01 8,675.68
FICA Fund 40,000.00 3,333.33 6,803.70 %17.01 3,470.37
Building Fund 152,000.00 12,666.67 25,853.75 %17.01 13,187.08
Unemployment Fund 10.00 0.83 1.69 %16.90 0.86

Total Revenues 4,414,370.00 367,864.17 796,297.37 %18.04 428,433.20

Expenses
Library Fund 3,476,896.00 289,741.33 374,983.11 %10.78 85,241.78
IMRF Fund 111,000.00 9,250.00 8,997.41 %8.11 (252.59)
FICA Fund 123,000.00 10,250.00 8,353.29 %6.79 (1,896.71)
Building Fund 320,000.00 26,666.67 20,618.52 %6.44 (6,048.15)
Unemployment Fund 5,000.00 416.67 0.00 %0.00 (416.67)

Total Expenses 4,035,896.00 336,324.67 412,952.33 %10.23 76,627.66

Total Revenues 4,414,370.00 367,864.17 796,297.37 %18.04 428,433.20
Total Expenses 4,035,896.00 336,324.67 412,952.33 %10.23 (76,627.66)
Excess Revenues less Expenses 378,474.00 31,539.50 383,345.04 %101.29 351,805.54

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District

All Funds Summary

For the 1 Month Ended July 31, 2020
Ideal Budget Percentage Spent: 8.33%

Variance vs.
Annual Prorated Current % of Prorated
Budget Budget Year-to-Date Budget Budget

1 7



Annual Prorated Year-to-Date % of Variance vs.
Budget Budget Actual Budget Prorated Budget

Operating Revenue
Property Tax 3,916,860.00 326,405.00 690,309.24 %17.62 363,904.24
Replacement Tax 20,000.00 1,666.67 10,328.10 %51.64 8,661.43
Collections 126,000.00 10,500.00 24,941.43 %19.79 14,441.43
Materials 9,500.00 791.67 0.00 %0.00 (791.67)
Other Income 50,000.00 4,166.67 21,050.45 %42.10 16,883.78

Total Operating Revenue 4,122,360.00 343,530.00 746,629.22 %18.11 403,099.22

Operating Expenses
Personnel 1,790,000.00 149,166.67 128,001.30 %7.15 (21,165.37)
Administration 371,806.00 30,983.83 32,081.29 %8.63 1,097.46
Utilities 0.00 0.00 6,284.79 %0.00 6,284.79
IT Services 171,250.00 14,270.83 (6,712.99) %(3.92) (20,983.82)
Public Relations 0.00 0.00 5,302.08 %0.00 5,302.08
Library Materials - Adult 576,750.00 48,062.50 180,228.17 %31.25 132,165.67
Library Materials - Youth 85,900.00 7,158.33 10,883.75 %12.67 3,725.42
Programs 71,190.00 5,932.50 513.88 %0.72 (5,418.62)
Capital 410,000.00 34,166.67 18,400.84 %4.49 (15,765.83)

Total Operating Expenses 3,476,896.00 289,741.33 374,983.11 %10.78 85,241.78

Total Revenues 4,122,360.00 343,530.00 746,629.22 %18.11 403,099.22
Total Expenses 3,476,896.00 289,741.33 374,983.11 %10.78 85,241.78
Excess Revenues less Expenses 645,464.00 53,788.67 371,646.11 %57.58 317,857.44

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District
Library Fund Summary

For the 1 Month Ended July 31, 2020
Ideal Budget Percentage Spent: 8.33%

2 8



Interim Library Director’s Report and Staff Activities 
For the August 18, 2020 Board Meeting  

Impact Stories  
Amelia Kmiec, Circulation Associate, Steve Kline, Programming Librarian, and Nick Mall, Collections 
Development Librarian, joined forces to help a patron who had discovered a photo of his father’s friend 
from the 1900s in his belongings. He wanted to get the photo to his father’s friends’ descendants but 
didn’t know how to find them. Together they used library resources and found living descendants, so 
the patron was able to share the photograph with them.  
 
Head of Youth Services Amanda Garrity received accolades about a Bedtime Stories program from a 
patron (and Board Member), “Mom to mom that was a hero’s effort last night! You get double working 
mom points for that PJ storytime! As always, you’re the best!” 
 
Youth Services Librarian Maddy Belk reports, “The storytime kit bags have been a huge hit! The parents 
really love the idea. … a good mix of people who come to storytime already and ones who didn’t know 
we were doing Zoom storytime have been taking them.” (The storytime kits include a shaker egg, scarf, 
bubbles and little pamphlet of our go-to songs/rhymes) 
 
Financial Report 
July 2020 
Financial highlights  
*Note: Due to the transition in management we do not have a detailed line item budget, this will be 
corrected for the next meeting.  

 
Circulation Services 
Total circulation for the month of July FY 2020/2021 was 22,318 compared to 44,031 for the same 
month last year. This represents a net change of -49.31 % 

Virtual Branch circulation for the month of July FY 2020/2021 was 8,515 compared to 4,527 for the same 
month last year. This represents a net change of 88.09 %. 
 
Usership 
Statistics for July (Reopened the Winnetka building on July 8, but includes curbside data) 
People Counter: 3,732 

• For July 2019, people counter statistics = 10,887 (Winnetka only)  
o 10,887/31 = 351*23 = 8,073 (We are at less than half of People Counter of a comparable 

month pre-pandemic) 
Physical Initial Checkouts: 8,296 

• For July 2019, physical initial checkouts = 21,202 (Winnetka and Northfield) 
o 21,202/31= 684*23=15,732 (We are at a little more than half of Circulation of a 

comparable month pre-pandemic) 
Check-ins: 8,060 

• As of 8/6, the District has about 12,177 items that could be returned to our Library District, 
however only 839 items that were checked out before April.  

9



 
Technology 
There were 153 public computer sessions at Winnetka in July. 
 
Winnetka had 3,391 hot spot sessions from 368 distinct devices. The average session time was 1 hour 
and 47 minutes. These sessions used a total of about 28GB of downstream bandwidth and about 7GB of 
upstream bandwidth. 
 
Northfield had 564 hot spot sessions from 118 distinct devices. The average session time was 41 
minutes. These sessions used a total of about 95GB of downstream bandwidth and about 4GB of 
upstream bandwidth. 
 
We had 8,757 web sessions with 4,595 website users as counted by Google Analytics. The sessions 
number is down from last year’s 9,672 sessions, and the unique visitors count is down from last year’s 
5,878 unique users. 
 
Website: Most Visited Pages 
Homepage | Library Updates | Returning Materials | Digital New York Times | Digital eBooks & 
eAudiobooks 
 
Library App 
Excluding all initial test data before July, aggregating data across both Android and iOS versions, there 
have been 48 users. This does not indicate downloads (downloads are not provided by Google Firebase) 
but we can assume that if downloaded the app was opened at least once. 
 
Top Five Screens 
 

 
 
Program and Activities 
Total District Program Attendance for the month of July FY 2020/2021 was 190 compared to 1,609 for 
the same month last year. This represents a net change of -88.19 % 
 
Our 2020 Summer Reading Program, Create Your Own Adventure! has come to an end. As of Aug. 6, we 
had 380 registrants and 138 finishers have logged their finish and received an electronic gift card to The 
Book Stall. 
 
One Book Two Villages will be happening virtually this year. We consulted with the Friends of the Library 
and they were in favor of having the event. We both agreed that it would be free to the public this year. 

Search the Catalog 339
Welcome 237
Search Menu 143
Item Details 117
Account Menu 93

10



It will be held September 10 at 7:30 p.m. and will be a 45-min livestream lecture on The Confession 
Club followed by 15-20 min of audience Q&A. 
 
Our Youth Services Department has been busy planning for fall, knowing that the school year will be 
looking differently for our District families. Some of the highlights include: 

• Creating activity bags that patrons can take home that tie-in with Fall programming 
• Creating Quick Pick bags of titles that patrons can grab if they aren’t interested in lengthy 

browsing. 
• Planning for the changes in Fall schooling including the addition of more study prep/self-guided 

learning nonfiction materials, a new Parent & teacher Resources webpage, and virtual options 
for our school partnerships 

 
Virtual Programming Highlights –  

• July 2: 12 people attended All Ages Storytime led by Amanda Garrity, Head of Youth Services. 
• July 15: 12 people attended Author Visit: Chad Sell. Chicago author Chad Sell talked about his 

graphic novels The Cardboard Kingdom and Doodleville. 
• July 15: 22 people attended Cut the Cord – Alternatives to Premium Cable Services. Led by our 

longtime volunteer George Lowman.  
• July 16: 23 people attended Writing Your Family History. The program explored genealogy 

research and using narrative writing techniques to record your findings 
• July 31: 31 people participated in the Super Smash Bros. Pop-Up Tournament hosted by Jimmy 

Gonzales-Vicker, Studio Associate. Participants played 47 rounds of Super Smash Bros. 
 
Professional Development and Training 
These are just a few examples of learning opportunities staff took advantage of in July:  

• Erin Collins, Adult Services Librarian, attended webinar 2020 Andrew Carnegie Medals for 
Excellence in Fiction and Nonfiction Awards, Creating a Culture of Wellness for Library Staff, and 
Book Club Picks: Online and In Person. 

• Jill Brasseur, Adult Services Librarian, attended Booklist webinar A Virtual Shout ‘N’ Share 
Showdown and Booklist webinar Adult Book Buzz: Coming Soon. 

• Melissa Morgan, Youth Services Librarian, attended a meeting of the CCS PAS Networking 
Group. Melissa has also recently been selected to join the CCS User Experience Advisory Group. 

• Lindsay Goldstein, Youth Services Librarian, was selected to join the Bluestem Award Reading 
Committee. This is a 3-year commitment in conjunction with the Association of Illinois School 
Library Educators. 

• Amanda Garrity, Head of Youth Services, finished a 3-year term on the Lincoln Award 
Nominations Committee. She was invited to continue her work as a member of the Lincoln 
Award Reading Committee. This is also a 3-year commitment in conjunction with the Association 
of Illinois School Library Educators. 

 
The Source  
The fall issue of The Source is going to be in District homes by Aug. 29. We have a lot of new virtual 
programming, staff recommendations, and information on our digital library and the new library app. 
 

11



Staff Survey Results 
We circulated a digital survey from staff to get their feedback on the Winnetka reopening and moving 
forward with opening the Northfield branch.  

Below are the key actionable takeaways: 

• We should proceed, thoughtfully and carefully with plans to return service to the Northfield 
Branch. 

• Management team should make every effort to have more contact with their staff in person or 
through video calls. 

• Management team should collaborate more with staff and every effort should be made to 
communicate often and transparently.  

• When introducing new training/procedures managers should also offer in person or video call 
training where staff can ask questions for clarity. 

• We can strategize the holds shelf and combo desk social distancing conundrum, to see if we can 
come up with a better strategy to keep staff feeling safe. 

• Management can work on and communicate plans for a potential slip backward in phases, so 
that staff understands what that could look like and how they could be impacted. 

• We can think through scheduling and how far ahead we can publish, what positions are still 
needed at Winnetka, how to communicate the flexibility needed/changing schedules, and 
involve staff more in this process if possible. 

 
Human Resources Changes 
Our HR representative has accepted a new job and his last day will be Friday, Aug. 14. He has been very 
helpful in his time with the library, and he will be greatly missed. We are already working with HR Source 
to find a suitable replacement.  
 
 

12



Digital July 2020 Continued

146 142 136
182

214 224 194 187 174 192 220
182 184 190 202 181

231 211 184

484

768
803

636

516

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Au
g-

18

Se
p-

18

O
ct

-1
8

N
ov

-1
8

De
c-

18

Ja
n-

19

Fe
b-

19

M
ar

-1
9

Ap
r-

19

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n-

19

Ju
l-1

9

Au
g-

19

Se
p-

19

O
ct

-1
9

N
ov

-1
9

De
c-

19

Ja
n-

20

Fe
b-

20

M
ar

-2
0

Ap
r-

20

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n-

20

Ju
l-2

0

eVideo

69

54 54

77 76

61

77 75

64 62
66

58

79 82

59

91

75

66

45

66

80

60

50
57

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Au
g-

18

Se
p-

18

O
ct

-1
8

N
ov

-1
8

De
c-

18

Ja
n-

19

Fe
b-

19

M
ar

-1
9

Ap
r-

19

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n-

19

Ju
l-1

9

Au
g-

19

Se
p-

19

O
ct

-1
9

N
ov

-1
9

De
c-

19

Ja
n-

20

Fe
b-

20

M
ar

-2
0

Ap
r-

20

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n-

20

Ju
l-2

0

eMusic

589 526

945

1466

1086
12431178

1473

871

1288

957
1118

131213031244
1341

10661065

1260

1528
1625

1763

1442

1780

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

Au
g-

18

Se
p-

18

O
ct

-1
8

N
ov

-1
8

De
c-

18

Ja
n-

19

Fe
b-

19

M
ar

-1
9

Ap
r-

19

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n-

19

Ju
l-1

9

Au
g-

19

Se
p-

19

O
ct

-1
9

N
ov

-1
9

De
c-

19

Ja
n-

20

Fe
b-

20

M
ar

-2
0

Ap
r-

20

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n-

20

Ju
l-2

0

eMagazine

13



Digital July 2020

1582
147014351360

1525
1724

1422
1570

14191455
1576

14281449
128412281166

1314
1449

1240

1636

2102

2340

2109
2210

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000
2200
2400

Adult Fiction eBook

253 244 264 257 234
310 338

267 283 258 282

152 158 176

285 285
242 249 269

614

10701084
983 953

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1000
1100

Youth Fiction eBook

13
5 6 7 3

14 19 13 16 15 15 9 11 17
29

15 10 11 11

33

115
104

165

102

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Youth Nonfiction eBook

645 670 695 674 661
749

606
710 778 761 754

609
709 704 725 686 716 794 717

839 905
1036 974

1179

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

2200

2400

Adult Fiction eAudiobook

390 406
349 374

438 445
393

478
442 467 464 441

362 388 388 410
453 464 441

480

645 668
749

787

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Adult Nonfiction eBook

174 154 176 182 168
216 186 174 189 180 207

155 161 170 201 180 158 194 162

292

447 470

361
423

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1000
1100

Youth Fiction eAudiobook

288 274 284 304 315 333
298

420 449 447
400

363 372 382 379 374 376
415

344
390

456
507 506 495

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Adult Nonfiction eAudiobook

5
6

3

7

3

12 12

9

5

9

13

9

3
4

5

2

8

6

3

9

11
10

16

13

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Youth Nonfiction eAudiobook

14



Physical Checkouts + Renewals July 2020

6615
5883 5803 5616 5345 5203 5012

5456 5292 5477
5838

6545 6473

5524 5394
4831 4982

5388
4917

2687

3 68
614

2678

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

Adult Fiction

4925
4687

4836
4654 4552

4720

4361

5160
4911 4893 5025

5230
4967

4585
4758 4618

4326

5292

4812

2460

3 53
339

1933

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Adult Nonfiction

12492
11749

12505

11570

9248 9560 9545
10348

10010
10534

13841

12903
12134

11225

1209911821

9225

1043910191

5338

2 64

898

5481

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

Youth Fiction

1919 1896 1906 1929
1653

2053 2083
2326 2299

2148 2245
2005 1918 1813 1673

1911
1650

2118 2153

1017

0 3 133

868

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Youth Nonfiction

1350

1150 1126
1038

933 900

788

929 947 944
1023

1113 1135

893

1001

815
752

824

702

372

5 12
49

293

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Adult Audiobooks

8049

6869
6421

6925 6902
7200

6296

7065
6587

5988 6058
6313

6029

5309
5627 5746

5379
5887 6028

3055

0 44
322

1597

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

Adult DVD/BluRay

530

306 272

398 397
346 352

407
349 329

588
651

590

359 390
347 347 334 348

243

0 2
42

234

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Youth Audiobooks

3229

2638 2588

3175
2818 2614

2840 2794
2285

2530

3125 3077 3029

2368

2931 2995

2125
2412 2246

1013

0 4 103
560

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

Youth DVD/Blu-Ray

15



Physical Initial Checkouts July 2020

813

645 664

589
531

489 493

582
533

588
646

681
657

516

599

465 477
450 438

239

0 8
49

160

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Adult Audiobooks

4147

3187 3187
3454 3453

3635
3418

3875
3553

3081 3129
3347

3175

2737 2771
2944

2773
3090

3299

1800

0 37
301

1208

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

Adult DVD/BluRay

320

180 163

247 240

172
228

286

187 185

437
388

282

213 226 227 207
177

227
168

0 2
40

184

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Youth Audiobooks

2380

2187

2366

2154
2013

2275 2217

2548
2378 2392

2515 2571
2403

2252
2340

2265

1949

2887

2328

1195

0 42

321

1038

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Adult Nonfiction

7701

6684

7709

6972

4975

5801 6008
6311 6156

6424

9246

7723
7210

6820

7546
7271

5253

6697
6443

3458

0 64

860

3204

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

Youth Fiction

1109
993 1025 1023

765

1160 1154
1207

1331

951

1344

1182

1061 1015
925

1105

786

1335

1140

591

0 3

127

328

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

Youth Nonfiction

1379

998 1024

1437

1259
1152 1157

1229

991
1085

1418
1308 1317

1015

1286 1294

829

1058
966

493

0 4
102

350

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

Youth DVD/Blu-Ray

4092

3306
3429

3214

2827
2963 2996

3192
3030

3203

3541

4002
3828

3186 3098

2763 2772

3231

2877

1664

0 59

590

1824

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Adult Fiction

16



Physical Renewals July 2020

2523 2577
2374 2402 2518

2240
2016

2264 2262 2274 2297
2543 2645

2338 2296
2068

2210 2157 2040

1023

3 9 24

854

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Adult Fiction

2545 2500 2470 2500 2539 2445

2144

2612 2533 2501 2510
2659 2564

2333 2418 2353 2377 2405 2484

1265

3 11 18

895

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Adult Nonfiction

4791 4796
4598

4273

3759
3537

4037
3854

4110

4595

4924

4405
4553 4550

3972
3742 3748

1880

2 0 38

2277

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Youth Fiction

810 903 881 906 888 893 929
1119

968
1197

901 823 857 798 748 806 864 783
1013

426

0 0 6

540

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Youth Nonfiction

537
505

462 449

402 411

295

347

414

356
377

432

478

377
402

350

275

374

264

133

5 4 0

133

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Adult Audiobooks

3902
3682

3234
3471 3449 3565

2878

3190
3034

2907 2929 2966 2854
2572

2856 2802
2606

2797 2729

1255

0 7 21

389

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Adult DVD/BluRay

210

126
109

151 157
174

124 121

162
144 151

263

308

146
164

120
140

157

121

75

0 0 2

50

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Youth Audiobooks

1850
1640 1564

1738
1559 1462

1683 1565
1294

1445
1707 1769 1712

1353
1645 1701

1296 1354 1280

520

0 0 1
210

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Youth DVD/Blu-Ray

17



Totals Graphs July 2020

21941

18180
1956719090

16063

1764717671

19230
1815917909

22276
21202

19933

17754
1879118334

15046

18925
17718

9608

0 219

2390

8296

y = -20.958x + 930765
R² = 0.475

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

Total Physical Initial Checkouts

1716816998
158901621515785

14949
13606

15255
145211493415467

1663516342

14322
1508214750

137401376913679

6577

13 31 110

5348

y = -19.592x + 868014
R² = 0.5724

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

Total Renewals Only

39109

351783545735305

3184832596
31277

34485
3268032843

3774337837
36275

32076
3387333084

28786

32694
31397

16185

13 250
2500

13644

y = -40.551x + 2E+06
R² = 0.5248

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

Total Physical Checkouts + Renewals

26095

22133

2391423980

20786

2297822394

24606

2285023042

27230
25726

24733

22454
2353623065

19695

23849
22394

15979

8224
9064

10381

16529

y = -16.238x + 730065
R² = 0.4428

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

Total Physcial Initial Checkouts with Digital

4154 3953
4347

4890 4723

5331

4723

5376

4691
5133 4954

4524
4800 4700 4745 4731 4649

4924
4676

6371

8224

8845

7991
8515

y = 4.8129x - 204732
R² = 0.5171

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

Total Digital Materials

43263

391313980440195

36571
37927

36000

39861
3737137976

4269742361
41075

36776
3861837815

33435

37618
36073

22556

8237 9095
10491

21877

y = -35.83x + 2E+06
R² = 0.518

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

50000

Total Circulation Activity

18



Northfield Reopening Plans 
Reopening Plans  

As we continue to remain in phase 4, and the Winnetka reopening is running more smoothly, we have 
turned our attention to the reopening of the Northfield Branch. Sarah Quish and Courtney Volny have 
started a Northfield Exploratory Committee with library staff to determine the best way to proceed. 

The committee held its first meeting on August 12th. During this meeting we discussed accessing the 
collection, opening the Northfield book drop and starting curbside service. The group decided to plan to 
simultaneously accomplish these tasks to make the process move more quickly. There are a lot of pieces 
to be worked out, but we are excited to move forward and will do so in the most thoughtful and safe way 
possible. The goal is to be ready to offer these services in the beginning of September. 

The following are key items discussed during the meeting. 

• Working with our facilities team and the village to get the building ready for staff to enter. This 
includes: 

o Plexiglas barriers being created & installed all-around both sides of the desk 
o Chairs and other furniture for patrons bring moved to the Community Room for 

the time being 
o PPE supplies for staff being delivered by facilities 
o Extra cleaning supplies being delivered by facilities 
o Extra cleanings being started, and scheduling a routine for cleaning once staff begin 

entering the building 
o Updating/cleaning our HVAC system 

• Working with staff to reevaluate and simplify procedures used for curbside at the Winnetka Public 
Library. 

• Exploring how to physically move the collection, and the coordination needed to do so. 
• Contacting our merchant delivery service to reinstate delivery between locations 
• Working with our scheduling manager to create a schedule for curbside services, flipping and 

weeding of materials, and the shift of all Northfield materials housed at Winnetka back to 
Northfield. 

• Reopening our drop box to the public for returns  
• Operating hours and days for curbside services 

o Opening two weekdays and one weekend day for curbside services, this would potentially 
be one day with morning hours, and another with afternoon/evening hours 

• Using the Northfield Community room to quarantine all items returned to Northfield through the 
bookdrop, or by patrons during curbside pickup. 

o These items will follow the same four-day quarantine schedule that is currently in place 
at Winnetka 

•  Evaluating the amount of flipping, weeding, and shelving of Northfield materials and the ensuing 
number of hours that will coincide with getting materials ready.  

 

19



Patio Project Update 
Progress   

Concrete was poured instead of the pavers that had been previously discussed. Concrete was the 
original plan, and The Lakota Group felt strongly when they viewed the pavers in the field that they did 
not compliment the design. The decision was made to continue with the concrete instead of the pavers.  

The lights and handrails are next to be installed, and once those go in the patio can open to the public. If 
all goes well, we can open it up before Labor Day.  

The sign and the landscaping will be the final pieces to be completed. 

Budget 

We are currently coming in with a net credit of $6,215. 

 

 

20



21



 
 
 
 
 

District closing dates for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 
 
Independence Day 

Sunday before Labor Day (not a paid holiday) 

Labor Day 

Thanksgiving Eve – close at 5 p.m. (not a paid holiday) 

Thanksgiving Day 

Christmas Eve 

Christmas Day 

New Year’s Eve 

New Year’s Day 

Easter Sunday (not a paid holiday) 

Sunday before Memorial Day (not a paid holiday) 

Memorial Day 

Saturday, July 4, 2020 

Sunday, September 6, 2020 

Monday, September 7, 2020 

Wednesday, November 25, 2020 

Thursday, November 26, 2020 

Thursday, December 24, 2020 

Friday, December 25, 2020 

Thursday, December 31, 2020 

Friday, January 1, 2021 

Sunday, April 4, 2021 

Sunday, May 30, 2021 

Monday, May 31, 2021 
 
 
8 paid holidays 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 22



WINNETKA-NORTHFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-2021/3 

 
ANNUAL ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT NON-RESIDENT CARDS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District is a tax-supported Public Library 
District; and  
  
 WHEREAS, people residing within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Winnetka-Northfield 
Public Library District pay taxes to support the library, and so need pay no additional fee to be eligible to 
receive a library card; and 
 
 WHEREAS, PA 92-0166 stipulates that “A person residing outside of a public library service 
area must apply for a non-resident card at the public library located closest to the person’s principal 
residence”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Office of the Illinois Secretary of State has issued regulations defining the 
“closest public library” and also providing three formulae which public libraries can use to determine the 
non-resident fee; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees of the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District has 
determined for its 2020-2021 fiscal year, commencing July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021 to 
participate in the non-resident reciprocal borrowing program of its regional library system and to issue 
non-resident library cards; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF 
LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE WINNETKA-NORTHFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1: Individuals residing beyond the jurisdictional boundaries of the Winnetka-Northfield 
Public Library District and not residing within the boundaries of another public library, and owning no 
taxable property within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District, 
may purchase a nonresident fee card for the fee calculated according to the Tax Bill Method (23 Ad. Code 
3050.60{b}). 
 
 Section 2:  Individuals residing beyond the jurisdictional boundaries of the Winnetka-Northfield 
Public Library District, but owning (as an individual, a partner, the principal stockholder, or other joint 
owner) taxable property within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library 
District, or serving as a Senior Administrative Officer of a firm, business, or other corporation owning 
taxable property within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District, 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Ordinance, may obtain one (1) non-resident library card 
without payment of the non-resident fee upon presentation of the most recent tax bill upon that taxable 
property; provided, however, that in no event shall the privileges and use of the Library be extended to 
more than one (1) individual non-resident for each parcel of taxable property.  Each non-resident library 
card issued pursuant to this Section is limited to the exclusive use of the individual whose name appears 
on its face. 
 

23



 Section 3:  The President of the Board of Library Trustees shall notify the regional library system 
in writing within 30 days of the adoption of this Ordinance, stating (a) the effective date of this 
Ordinance, (b) the beginning and ending dates of the 12-month period of validity for non-resident library 
cards issued pursuant to this Ordinance, and (c) the fee formula as set forth herein.   
 
 Section 4:  The Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District shall continue to honor all non-
resident library cards heretofore issued by the Library, for the full term of purchase.   
 
 Section 5:  The Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District shall cooperate with other 
participating area public libraries and the regional library system and adjacent regional library systems to 
determine the appropriate non-resident service areas, as stated in 23 Ad. Code 3050.25. 
 
 Section 6:  The Policy of the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District for service to non-
residents, including a description of the Library’s service areas and the methods of calculating fees, shall 
be available for public inspection at the library. 
 
 Section 7:  A valid non-resident library card issued by the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library 
District pursuant to this Ordinance shall accord a non-resident library cardholder all the services which 
this Library provides to its residents, including reciprocal borrowing privileges.   
 
 Section 8:  No non-resident is eligible to receive a “local use” library card from the Winnetka-
Northfield Public Library District.     
 
Adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District, Cook County, 
Illinois, on the 18th day of August 2020 by a vote of: 
 

AYES: _____________________________________ 
 

NAYES: ____________________________________ 
 

ABSENT: ___________________________________ 
 
APPROVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Jean-Paul Ruiz-Funes 
      President of the Board of Library Trustees 
      Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
      Cook County, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Suzanne Shoup 
Secretary of the Board of Library Trustees  
Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
Cook County, Illinois 

24



Recommendation of Printer and Photocopier  
Replacement Expenditure 
 
Current lease - $2,280/month for 36-months 
The current 36-month copier and printer lease ends in September. The lease has covered 3 
large copiers, 3 smaller copiers which also function as printers, 2 heavy duty printers, and two 
light duty printers. The lease agreement has included maintenance and supplies. This 
configuration has been working well at both buildings, although we can make some minor 
adjustments to improve service and reduce costs. 

 
Proposed new lease - $1,830/month for 51-months 
The lease company has proposed a new 51-month lease (48 months + 3 months deferred) in 
which all of the copier equipment would be replaced with updated models. The updated 
models would all be the more current versions of the equipment we have now with minor 
improvements but the same interfaces. The small public copier in the Studio would now have 
support for printing from Macs, a deficiency we have noticed in the past lease period, as Macs 
are used more in this area. 

The two heavy duty printers and one of the light duty printers would be kept, rotating them for 
more even wear. The second light duty printer would be returned as we are not using it and we 
do not anticipate the return of a need for it. 

The resulting lease cost is $1,830 a month, a reduction of $450 a month or $5,400 a year, over 
the current lease. We are receiving U.S. Communities pricing on the equipment. 

 

 

25



26



27



28



29



30



 

To: The Board of Library Trustees 

From: Sarah Quish 

Date: August 12, 2020 
 

Re: Ordinance#2020-2021/2, .02% Building and Maintenance Tax 
 

In the past, the Board has been presented with, and has passed, a .02% levy Building and 
Maintenance Tax levy. This is separate from the overall levy ordinance that will be passed in the 
fall. 

 
The .02% levy raises funds strictly for the Building and Site funds to be used for the upkeep of 
the Library's building. The lease payments and utilities for the Northfield Branch will also be 
included in payments made from the Building & Sites fund effective July 1, 2020 (the start of the 
2020-2021 fiscal year). 

 
Ordinance #2020-2021/2 is the 2020-2021 .02% Building and Maintenance Tax ordinance. The 
Ordinance itself will be presented at the August 18, 2020 Board Meeting. Assuming it will pass, 
the Public Notice page (the first page of the following information) will be published in the 
Chicago Sun-Times that reaches the library’s service area. Although not part of the actual 
ordinance, the third page shows the information used by staff to calculate the number of 
registered voters who would need to sign petitions as mentioned in the Public Notice. 

 
Recommendation: Approval by roll call vote: Ordinance# 2020-2021/2, the .02% Building 
and Maintenance Tax levy for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 

 
 

31



ORDINANCE NO.  2020-2021/2 
(.02% Building and Maintenance Tax) 

 
WHEREAS, Illinois Statutes authorize the Library Trustees to levy a special tax in addition to the annual Public 

Library District tax for the purchase of sites and buildings, maintenance, equipment, and other purposes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of said special tax is .02% of the value of all the taxable property in the District as 
equalized or assessed by the Department of Revenue; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Library Trustees deem it advisable and necessary to levy said special tax for the 2020-2021 fiscal 
year. 
 

NOW, by  the Board  of Library  Trustees  of the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District that, for the 
purchase of sites and buildings, the construct ion and equipment of buildings, the rental of buildings required for 
Library purposes, and maintenance, repairs, and alterations of Library buildings and equipment, a special tax of 
.02% of the value of all the taxable property in the District, as equalized or assessed by the Department of 
Revenue, shall be and is levied for the 2020-2021 fiscal year. 
 

Notice of the adoption of this Ordinance shall be published in accordance with Illinois Statutes. 
 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 
 
Adopted this 18th day of August, 2020, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 
 
AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
President 
Board of Library Trustees 
Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 

___________________________________ 
Secretary 
Board of Library Trustees 
Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
 
 
 
  

32



 

 
Published this____th day of August 2020. 
Posted this____th day of August 2020 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

Public notice is hereby given that, by Ordinance No. 2020-2021/2 adopted on the 18th day of August, 
2020, the Board of Library Trustees of the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District  determined to 
levy an additional tax of 0.02% of the value of all taxable property in the District, as equalized or assessed 
by the Department of Revenue, for the purchase of sites and buildings, the construction and equipment of 
buildings, the rental of buildings required for Library purposes, and maintenance, repairs and alterations 
of Library buildings and equipment, said levy to be effective for the 2020-2021 fiscal year. The text of 
said Ordinance is set forth below. 

 
The question of levying said tax shall be submit ted  to  the  electors of the District if a petition  is 
filed with the Board signed  by not less than 1,375 registered voters in the District asking that the 
question of levying said 0.02% tax be submitted to the electors of the District. Said petition must be 
filed within thirty (30) days after publication of this Public Notice. The date of the prospective 
referendum is April 6, 2021.  

  
 
 
 
 

/s/ Suzie Shoup Secretary 

 
 
 
 

Board of Library Trustees 
Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 

33



 

Not to be included in published notice, only for reference use. 
Registered voters on August 1, 2020  
 

 

 

Winnetka (Cook) 9,535 (per Colleen - 312-603-1127 
Colleen.Gleason@CookCountylL.gov as of 
08/01/2020) 

 
 Northfield (Cook)  4,558 

 
Total Registered Voters 13,748 

 

10% of 13,748 = 1,374.8 
 

Per 75ILCS 5/3-1 "However, if within the 30 day period, a petition is filed with the corporate authorities, signed 
by electors of the city equal in number to I0% or more of the total number of registered voters in the city, asking 
that the question of levying such a .03% tax be submitted to the electors of the city, the question shall be submitted 
at an election.11

 

34

mailto:Colleen.Gleason@CookCountylL.gov


9/21/20 
 

(Tentative)* 
 
 

BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-2021/1 
 

WINNETKA-NORTHFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2020 to JUNE 30, 2021 

 
 This Ordinance constitutes the Budget and Appropriation Ordinance for the Winnetka-Northfield 

Public Library District, Cook County, Illinois, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 

2021. 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Library Trustees of the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library 

District as follows: 

 SECTION 1.  The following budget and appropriation amounts are adopted for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 

 
       Budget              Appropriation  

A. GENERAL FUND 
 

1. IT Services     $   171,250.00  $   180,000 
 
2. Administrative Services    $   314,806.00  $   347,000 
 
3. Personnel Salaries and Benefits   $1,790,000.00  $1,862,000 
 
4. Programming      $     71,190.00  $     90,000 
 
5. Insurance     $     30,000.00  $     35,000 
 
6. Materials     $   662,650.00  $   738,000 
 
7. Capital Outlay      $   410,000.00  $    547,000 
 
 TOTAL     $3,449,896.00  $3,799,000  

 
*All figures contained in this Budget and Appropriation Ordinance are tentative and subject to change prior to final 
approval of the Board.  Final approval of the Board is expected on September 21, 2020. 

35



2 
 

 
 
 
               Budget      Appropriation  

 
B. SPECIAL FUND TAX FUNDS 

 
1.  IMRF                                       $111,000                $200,000 
2.  FICA              $123,000       $150,000  
3.  Unemployment Insurance Fund     $5,000      $100,000 
4.  Liability Insurance  $15,000                    $30,000       
5.  Audit Fund  $12,000                    $22,000  
6.  Building and Equipment (.02%)                                                    $320,000               $   559,000                       
  
TOTAL  $586,000                $1,061,000 
 
TOTAL BUDGET  $4,035,896  
 
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS                                                                                           $4,860,000 
 
 
 SECTION 2.   As part of the annual budget, it is stated:    

a. The cash on hand at the beginning of the fiscal year is $6,365,164.84 
 

b. The estimated cash expected to be received during the fiscal year from all sources is 
$4,444,370 
 

c. The estimated expenditures for the fiscal year are $4,035,896. 
 

d. The estimated cash expected to be on hand at the end of the fiscal year is $6,395,164.84 
 

e. The estimated amount of taxes to be received during the fiscal year is $4,228,8701  
 

f. The estimated amount of income to be received from sources other than library taxes during 
the fiscal year is $215,500. 
 

 SECTION 3.  Funds in the total amount of $4,858,906 or so much thereof as may be authorized by 

law, be and the same are hereby appropriated as specified.  

  

 
1 Latest tax extension of $4,208,870 (to be received in 2020 from levy filed in 2019) plus $20,000 from corporate 
replacement tax. 

36



3 
 

 

 

 SECTION 4.  All unexpended balances of proceeds received annually from public library taxes not in 

excess of statutory limits may be transferred to the Special Reserve Fund. 

PASSED by the Board of Library Trustees on September 21, 2020. 

 
 
AYES: ________________________________________ 
 
NAYS:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
 
 
 
            
       Jean-Paul Ruiz-Funes, President   
       Board of Library Trustees 
       Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
     
Suzie Shoup, Secretary 
Board of Library Trustees 
Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
  

37



4 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS. 
COUNTY OF COOK ) 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICITY 
 
 

I, Suzie Shoup, the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Library Trustees of the 

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District, and the keeper of the records thereof, hereby certify that 

attached hereto is a true and correct copy of an Ordinance entitled: 

 
BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-2021/1 

 
 

adopted at a regular meeting of the said Board of Library Trustees held on September 21, 2020. 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Suzie Shoup, Secretary 

      Board of Library Trustees 
      Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
 
  
      Date signed:  September 21, 2020 
 
 
(Library Seal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38


	Minutes of July 20_2020
	2020.07 Financials
	July 2020 Digital Cont
	Dig Cont

	July 2020 Digital
	Digital

	July 2020 Physical Initial Checkouts + Renewals
	Checkouts + Renewals

	July 2020 Physical Initial Checkouts
	Checkouts

	July 2020 Renewals
	Renewals

	July 2020 Totals
	Totals Graphs

	District Closing Dates 2020-2021
	2020-2021 Non Resident Cardholder Ord.
	2020 Printer Lease Proposal
	Audit engagement letter 2020
	02% building and sites ord 2020-2021
	PUBLIC NOTICE

	Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 2020-21



